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City Market

9.(c.) Justification for Land to be Designated

The lot included in this nomination follows the original
boundaries of the market property, as acquired by the City of
Raleigh in 1913, and which have historically been associated with
the market building.

9.{d.) Architectural Description and Significance

Raleigh’s city Market is located across from the south side of
Moore Square, filling an entire block bounded by East Martin,
Blake, Wolfe and Parham Streets. Almost entirely symmetrical,
the rectangular, two-story brick structure is defined by two end
pavillions with a large, tiled gable roof between them.

The two-story formal entrance to the market building faces Martin
Street and is clad on its front elevation with a light-tan,
pressed brick in stretcher bond. Flanking a central gable with
shaped parapet are slightly-projecting corner towers with 1low,
hipped French tile roofs. Double-doored openings with transoms
provide entrance through the bases of these towers, while on the
second floor of both the towers and the central gable are round-
arched double windows with stone key and spring-stones and
radially-muntined transoms. Over the paired double windows of
the first floor is a long copper panel with raised lettering
inscribed "City Market."

At either side of the end towers are shaped wing parapets, and
the common bond side elevations of the towers have large, round

winaows with stone keystones at the quadrant points and radial
muntins.

The south elevation of the building is detailed very much like
the north one, except that it is faced with red brick laid in
common bond and has no copper panel.

Between the two end sections is a broad sweep of red French-tiled
gable roof that projects in hipped sections at all four corners.
As constructed, both sides of the market had deeply-overhanging
eaves cantilevered over the sidewalk to shelter shoppers and
vendors. At some point, a series of pipe columns were added to
help support these overhangs at the corners. Mid-way along each
side elevation are large, common bond brick gables with shaped
parapets and round-arched windows. The roof is also pierced by a
pair of skyligdhts and a pair of chimneys on either flank.

The red common bond brick side elevations of the market are
divided into bays by shallow pilasters, each bay with a one over
one window and half-glazed door with transom. Below the side
gables on either elevation, the wall proijects slightly. Centered
halfway down each side elevation is a double-doored entrance. At
the ends of these elevations are metal stairs that provide access



to the second floor rooms. At the southwest corner of the
bui-lding is a stair leading down to a basement boiler room.

Originally, the interior of the building appears to have been
almost entirely open, except for office spaces on the second
floor of the towers on each end. A small section of original tin
ceiling survives in the restaurant on the north end. The width
of the building’s interior was spanned by exposed, open steel
trusses which are still in place. White-enameled brickwork laid
in white cement mortar lined the walls of the market space and is
still in place, although now covered, for the most part, by new
interior fittings. Floors were concrete. The original two
aisles lined with booths were removed in the 1950s.

Raleigh architect James M. Kennedy (1880-1948) designed the new
market house. A 1903 graduate of North Carolina State, he was
known mainly as an architect of residences and public schools,
including the Murphey Schcol on Person Street, but he also
designed the remodelling of the Tabernacle Baptist Church at the
other side of Moore Square.(1l)

Kennedy chose the Spanish Mission style for the building,
adopting a mode that originated in California in the 1890s as a
revival of Spanish colonial architecture, but which had spread
eastward. During the period from 1905 to about 1920 it was one
of the popular styles for train stations, public buildings and
residences. Among its distinctive elements are bell towers,
often paired; round-headed arches; shaped parapets; and tile
roofs with deeply-overhanging, open eaves---all found on the
market house. Although having nothing to do with the
architectural traditions of North Carclina, the features of the
style were well-suited for a hot c¢limate and readily adaptable
for the market building.

The urban market house was a common building form in most of
eighteenth and nineteenth century AaAmerica, particularly 1in
combination with a second floor meeting space. However, 1in a
state with very little urban history during that period, market
houses were relatively rare, and surviving nineteenth and early
twentieth century markets are rarer still. The two most
distinguished market houses extent in North Carolina,
architecturally, are the antebellum Fayetteville Market and the
Raleigh City Market. Certainly the Raleigh Market, with its
size, exclusive use as a market house, distinctive and well-
composed use of stylistic elements, and virtually intact
preservation, is the best surviving example of the market house
erected in North Carolina since the Civil War.

9.{e.) Historical Significance

At least three city market buildings preceeded the one on
Martin Street. Early in the nineteenth century, the market was
located on Hargett Street between Wilmington and Fayetteville
Streets, being replaced in the 1840s by a building on
Fayetteville Street at EXchange Street, and in turn in 1868 by a



new, three-story brick building that ran from Fayetteville to
Wilmington Streets. By the early twentieth century there were
many objections to its unsanitary conditions and noxious ocdors,
as well as to unsavory customers gravitating to it from nearby
taverns.(2)

In June of 1913, the City purchased a tract of land on East
Martin Street "to be used for the erection thereon by the City of
Raleigh of a market."(3) Raleigh architect James M. Kennedy
designed the new facility .in a style referred to by the
newspapers as "Spanish." A low bid of §$22,386.56 won a contract
to construct the facility for contractor J. G. Adams of Raleigh
in November of 1913.(4)

The new building was completed by the end of the next summer and
formally opened on September 30, 1914, contemporary newspaper
articles reported that the large rectangular space that made up
the center of the building was divided into compartments for
butchers, fish dealers and hucksters. There were sixteen meat
booths, seven fish booths (provided with refrigeration) and nine
vegetable booths, Contrasting the open conditions and easily
cleaned interior materials of the new market with the o0ld one,
the News and QObserver remarked,

The 0ld market, dark and close, with its worn wood work,
saturated with the odors of heat, will have no further place
in the nightmare of the shopper after market products.
Dainty slippered lassies may trip in to the new sanctum of
the stockyard and the farm without hesitation and without
reluctance.({5)

Raleigh’s city market was an important institution in the daily
lives of its citizens in the first half of this century. By 1950
more than two-thirds of the city’s families visited the market in
the course of the year, and more than four and a half million
dollars worth of goods were bought, sold and shippec from its
stalls.(6) However, the need for larger wholesale facilities to
match the state’s agricultural and commercial growth led to the
construction of a new, state farmer’s market in North Raleigh
during 1950.(7)

The building continued in use as a market until the late 1950s,
when the City Council adopted a resolution stating that the
development of supermarkets had made it "unnecessary in the
public¢ interest that the City Market be continued."(8) At an
auction sale on July 14, 1959, the property was sold for $55,000
to Herbert Seligson of Raleigh. Included in the sale was the
sidewalk area underneath the overhanging eaves, though there was
a provision for this strip to revert to the City if the building
was demolished in the future.(9)

The interior of the market was converted to a furniture store,
while the sheltered sidewalks continued to serve as a farmer’'s
market. Following the deaths of Herbert Seligson and his brother



and heir stanley, the property passed in trust to Birdena
Seligson in 1973.(10)

Plans for redeveloping the market area in the mid-1980s led to
re-acquisition of the market by the City through eminent domain
in 1986, this time at a cost of $400,000.(11) The market and
surrounding properties were transferred to City Market
Associates, which used Cranston Development Corporation of
Pittsburgh to rehabilitate the market. When it proved difficult
to secure tenants for the property, the preoject was taken over by
the City of Raleigh in 1988.(12)

The rehabilitation undertaken by Cranston included removing
interior alterations made to the building since its construction,’
as well as restoring window and door openings which had been
altered on the exterior.
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4Suvey Files.
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29 September 1914, p. 2.

bwilliam B. Bushong and Charlotte V. Brown, National Redister
nomination for Moore Square Historic District, Item 8, p. 4.

T1pbid., Item 8, p. 5.
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In 1988 the city replaced Cranston Development Corporation by transfer of
the general partnership from Cranston to NCNB Community Development
Corporation of Charlotte, N.C. In September of that year NCNB Community
Development Corporation entered into an agreement with York Properties, Inc.
of Raleigh to manage and lease the property.

Since then leases have been made with two major restaurants, three food
vendors in the newly created Food Court in the City Market building, and
seven retail shops to join the seven retailers who were already operating.
York Properties also recruited a successful Raleigh food speciality store
to locate in the Market complex.

York Properties is conducting an aggressive campaign to £ill the remaining
retail space on the street level and office space on the second floor of
the buildings within the City Market. The company has also worked with the
Raleigh City Council to ilmprove the traffic circulation around the market
and to provide additional parking near by. York has encouraged the council
to broaden the presence of law enforcement officers in the neighborhood and
has facilitated the return of horses to the area by supporting the creation
of a mounted police unit within the Raleigh Police Department.

A farmers market with produce, meat, seafood and flower vendors similar in
concept to the 1914 City Market together with a jazz club that will attract
headline entertainers to the downtown area is part of the expansion being
planned for 1990.

January 5, 1990
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